
1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OGUNQUIT PLANNING BOARD  
REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING MINUTES 
DUNAWAY CENTER MAIN AUDITORIUM 

MONDAY APRIL 10, 2017 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 
 
 

A. ROLL CALL –  
 
Members Present: Steve Wilkos (Chair) 
   Rusty Hayes (Vice Chair) 
   Muriel Freedman   
   Mark MacLeod 
 
Members Excused: Jackie Bevins 
 
Also Present:  Scott Heyland, Code Enforcement Officer 
   Natalie Burns, Esq. Town Attorney 
   Maryann Stacy, Recording Secretary 
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -  
 
C. MISSION STATEMENT – The Planning Board Mission Statement was read by Ms. 
 Freedman. 
 
D. MINUTES – March 27, 2017 Site Visit, Public Hearings and Regular Business 

Meeting.    
 
Mr. Hayes Moved to Accept the Minutes of the March 27, 2017 Site Visit as Submitted. 
HAYES/MACLEOD 4:0 UNANIMOUS 
 
Mr. Hayes Moved to Accept the Minutes of the March 27, 2017 Regular Business Meeting 
as Amended. 
 HAYES/MACLEOD 4:0 UNANIMOUS  
  
E. PUBLIC INPUT – For any matter NOT already on this Agenda. 
 



 
 Planning Board Meeting: April 10, 2017 

 

2 
 

David Barton (55 Israel Head Road) expressed concern involving the Zoning Ordinance, 
Comprehensive Plan, and Historic Preservation Ordinance. He also referred to several historic 
buildings in Ogunquit.  Mr. Barton stated that Mr. Heyland made a comment about the 
Comprehensive Plan and/or the Historic Preservation Ordinance being tools that don’t apply to 
some of the decisions he makes.  Mr. Barton stated that if he were to show up with proof of 
ownership of the Leavitt Theater he could ask for a permit to demolish the building and it would 
be allowed. If something isn’t prohibited it is allowed. Mr. Barton went on to say that any of the 
historic structures in town could be demolished with a permit from the Code Enforcement Office 
without coming to the Planning Board, the Historic Preservation Commission, or without 
invoking comments from the Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Barton stated that the first indication that 
the Leavitt Theater was being demolished would be when the equipment showed up to take it 
down.  He suggested a second step should be put in place to review situations like this.  
 
Mr. Heyland responded that demolition of any pre 1930 structure in The District would require a 
Design Certificate issued by the Planning Board; as well as a review by the Historic Preservation 
Commission.  He noted that this is required under Article 11.3.A of the Ordinance. 
 
F. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – 
 
1. FINDINGS OF FACT FOR: 
 
 10 and 12 BEACH PLUM LANE REALTY TRUSTS – 10 and 12 Beach Plum Lane 
 – Map 9 Blocks 66A and 66B – R/RP.  Site Plan Review Application for a post  
 December 31, 1930 structure.  Application to construct a 4’x190’ fixed walkway and 
 5’x30’ pier connected to a 3’x26’ seasonal ramp and 10’x20’ float for access to the 
 Ogunquit River; to serve both residences. 
 
The Applicant’s Attorney Sandra Guay thanked the Board for giving her the opportunity to 
review and comment on Town Attorney Natalie Burns’ draft of the Findings of Fact.  
 
Attorney Guay noted that it has come to her attention that there may have been some 
communication, via e-mail between Board members prior to the last meeting. This application 
may have been discussed; and the Applicant was not made aware of it. She noted a document 
which was discussed at the last meeting. She thanked Attorney Burns for advising the Board that 
the document should not be considered if it was not submitted and made a part of the record. 
However she noted that once discussed it could not be un-discussed. For the record, Attorney 
Guay stated that she has some concern about that communication and any bias it may have 
caused. 
 
Mr. Wilkos stated that as Chair he was not aware of any e-mail communication that went on 
discussing this application. 
 
Attorney Guay responded that a copy of the e-mail was in the Applicant’s file in the Code 
Office. It had to do with research being done by a Board member regarding other docks, and 
State requirements for a permit.  Attorney Guay stated that she wasn’t asserting that anything 
discussed was correct or incorrect, however that discussion, taking place outside the view of the 



 
 Planning Board Meeting: April 10, 2017 

 

3 
 

Applicant, concerns her; particularly regarding the document referenced in the e-mail. Attorney 
Guay noted that Mr. Wilkos was copied on the e-mail. 
 
Mr. Wilkos responded that he is aware of the e-mails, he noted that it takes three Board members 
to constitute a “meeting” and the only people involved in those e-mails were: the Code Office, 
one Board member, and himself. It was not a meeting of the Planning Board. 
 
Attorney Guay agreed that it was not a “meeting” however it was communication between board 
members about this application. 
 
Attorney Burns suggested that, at the end of the process, the Board should affirm that the 
decision is based upon the materials presented by the applicant, by the public, and considered by 
the Board at the Public Hearing; and it is not based upon any other research that may have been 
conducted by independent Board members.    
 
The Board, along with Town Attorney Natalie Burns, and the Applicant’s Attorney Sandra Guay 
reviewed Attorney Guay’s proposed changes to the Findings. Attorney Burns’ noted that 
Attorney Guay submitted two proposed documents and she (Attorney Burns) agreed that 
Attorney Guay was not given much time to prepare her responses.  Attorney Burns suggested the 
Board consider all of the proposed changes, on both documents. She noted that Attorney Guay 
was present to explain her reasoning behind the proposals.  
 
Mr. Wilkos asked if the Board was comfortable reviewing all of the proposed changes in both of 
the documents submitted by Attorney Guay. 
 
Attorney Burns noted that considering each suggestion and making one decision at a time will 
eliminate any challenges to the procedure.  
 
Mr. Wilkos asked for confirmation that submittal requirements apply to applications; and not 
findings of fact. 
 
Attorney Burns’ agreed. 
 
Ms. Freedman noted that she only just received Attorney Guay’s second submission. 
 
Attorney Burns responded that the second submission actually has fewer proposed changes; and 
some of them only correct typos. 
 
The Board, along with Attorney Burns and Attorney Guay reviewed and discussed each of 
Attorney Guay’s proposed changes to the Findings of Fact as drafted by Attorney Burns. Each 
proposed change was either agreed to, or not, by the Board.  
 
Attorney Burns reiterated that the Board may refuse or agree to any proposed changes to the 
Findings draft, they may also remove language.  
 
After reviewing all of the proposed changes Attorney Burns asked Attorney Guay if she had 
anything else. She did not. 



 
 Planning Board Meeting: April 10, 2017 

 

4 
 

 
Attorney Burns advised the Board that they would need to vote to adopt the Findings as revised. 
 
Mr. MacLeod Moved to accept the Findings of Fact for 10 and 12 BEACH PLUM LANE 
REALTY TRUSTS – 10 and 12 Beach Plum Lane – Map 9 Blocks 66A and 66B – R/RP.  Site 
Plan Review Application for a post December 31, 1930 structure.  Application to construct a 
4’x190’ fixed walkway and 5’x30’ pier connected to a 3’x26’ seasonal ramp and 10’x20’ float 
for access to the Ogunquit River; to serve both residences as revised at this meeting; and based 
upon the above findings and conclusions the Board hereby denies the application.   
MACLEOD/HAYES 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked if there was any further discussion. There being none he called for a vote on 
Mr. MacLeod’s Motion: 
 
Mr. MacLeod Moved to accept the Findings of Fact for 10 and 12 BEACH PLUM LANE 
REALTY TRUSTS – 10 and 12 Beach Plum Lane – Map 9 Blocks 66A and 66B – R/RP.  
Site Plan Review Application for a post December 31, 1930 structure.  Application to 
construct a 4’x190’ fixed walkway and 5’x30’ pier connected to a 3’x26’ seasonal ramp and 
10’x20’ float for access to the Ogunquit River; to serve both residences as revised at this 
meeting; and based upon the above findings and conclusions the Board hereby denies the 
application.   
MACLEOD/HAYES 4:0 UNANIMOUS VOTE TO DENY 
 
Attorney Burns confirmed that a written decision would need to be issued within seven days. 
 
 RENATA MOON LLC dba THE PUFFIN INN – 433 Main Street - Map 14 Block 
 16 – GBD2.  Design Review and Site Plan Review for a pre 1931 structure.  
 Application to remove existing garage and replace it with a new structure: garage 
 with two units and an owner’s quarters above. 
 
Mr. Hayes Moved to Accept the Findings of Fact for Renata Moon LLC dba The Puffin Inn – 
433 Main Street – Map 14 Block 16 as Submitted. 
HAYES/MACLEOD  
 
Mr. MacLeod asked if the Applicant agreed to the faux barn door. 
 
Mr. Wilkos responded that he remembers the Applicant agreeing to that. 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked if there was any further discussion. There being none he called for a vote on 
Mr. Hayes’ motion. 
 
Mr. Hayes Moved to Accept the Findings of Fact for Renata Moon LLC dba The Puffin 
Inn – 433 Main Street – Map 14 Block 16 as Submitted. 
HAYES/MACLEOD 4:0 UNANIMOUS 
 
 FAIRPOINT COMMUNICATIONS – 488 Main Street (Map 8 Block 8), 622 Main 
 Street (Map 9 Block 82), and 714 Main Street (Map 10 Block 1) - all GBD2.  Site 



 
 Planning Board Meeting: April 10, 2017 

 

5 
 

 Plan Review Application to install wireless small cell antennas and related 
 equipment on existing utility poles.  
 
Ms. Freedman Moved to Accept the Findings of Fact for Verizon Communications 488 Main 
Street (Map 8 Block 8), 622 Main Street (Map 9 Block 82), and 714 Main Street (Map 10 Block 
1) as Amended. 
FREEDMAN/MACLEOD 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked if there was any further discussion. There being none he called for a vote on 
Ms. Freedman’s motion. 
 
Ms. Freedman Moved to Accept the Findings of Fact for Verizon Communications 488 
Main Street (Map 8 Block 8), 622 Main Street (Map 9 Block 82), and 714 Main Street (Map 
10 Block 1) as Amended. 
FREEDMAN/MACLEOD 4:0 UNANIMOUS 
 
G.  NEW BUSINESS –  
 
1. JAMES HARTWELL – 309 Shore Road – Map 3 Block 17 – LB/OFR.  Design 
 Review for a post 1931 structure. Application to construct an addition to an existing 
 structure on an existing foundation.  
 
Mr. Hartwell informed the Board that he had developed a timeline of things which had taken 
place on this property.  In 1999 he received approval to put an addition on 309 Shore Road. He 
noted that nothing has changed from that original application, including the footprint. The Code 
Enforcement Officer asked to have the drawings redone to confirm that everything will meet 
current codes.  
 
Mr. Hartwell noted that the foundation was laid several years ago and a twenty year cap was 
placed upon it.  
 
Mr. Hayes noted that one of the items on the timeline dated September 12, 2016 states that the 
Planning Board approved, or granted, a change of use from business to boarding house. Mr. 
Hayes reminded Mr. Hartwell that that approval was very limited and the statement submitted on 
the timeline is misleading. He pointed out that the Board did not approve the entire building’s 
use as a boarding house. 
 
Mr. Hartwell agreed.  
 
Mr. Hayes wanted it on the record that the Board did not approve the entire building as a 
boarding house. The Board approved a specific square footage for boarding house use.  
 
Mr. Hartwell agreed; and added that at the Site Visit the Board had suggested two parking 
revisions. One was to move the handicapped parking space, which he has done, and the other 
was to change the two signs for the Thompson House. 
 



 
 Planning Board Meeting: April 10, 2017 

 

6 
 

Mr. Hayes noted that the site plan indicates that one of the spaces is still marked as “reserved” 
even though that space is no longer so marked. 
 
Mr. Hartwell agreed to correct the plan. 
 
Ms. Freedman asked why the application says “year built 1994”. 
 
Mr. Hartwell responded that he received approval for the addition in 1999 and the foundation 
was constructed in 2000. 
 
Ms. Freedman pointed out that the Thompson House was built in 1750.  
 
Mr. Hartwell agreed and added that the Thompson House was built c. 1750 and the proposed 
project is to construct an addition on the back of it, where the existing foundation is currently 
located. 
 
Rob Carter from TMS Architects presented the elevation drawings for the project. He pointed 
out the 1999 foundation which was capped. 
 
Mr. Wilkos noted that the Board received a memo from the Ogunquit Historic Preservation 
Commission and that they had no concerns with the proposed project. 
 
Ms. Freedman asked for confirmation that nothing is being done to the 1750 house. 
 
Mr. Carter confirmed that the only things being done are painting and a new roof. 
 
Ms. Freedman asked why OHPC did a review. 
 
Mr. Carter and Mr. Hartwell responded that it was presented to them as a courtesy. They also 
confirmed that the proposed addition is to the 1750 Thompson House building and it will be one 
building. 
 
Mr. Hartwell confirmed that he met with the OHPC and reviewed the proposed project. 
 
Mr. Wilkos reviewed the OHPC Memo to the Board. They met with the Applicant on February 
28, 2017 to review the project. The OHPC accepted the proposed plans as submitted to them at 
that meeting. The OHPC recommended that a continuation of the existing buildings style and 
details be carried over into the new addition, windows to be wood with the same mullions as the 
windows in the main building.  The roofing material will be architectural asphalt shingles.  
 
Mr. Hayes asked for details of the proposed use of the addition. 
 
Mr. Hartwell responded that it will be a residence for the managers of the Hartwell House who 
also oversee everything in Thompson Green.  The residence will contain an office for the 
manager who also has his own webmaster business. 
 
Mr. Hayes asked if the addition will be strictly for the managers’ use. 



 
 Planning Board Meeting: April 10, 2017 

 

7 
 

 
Mr. Hartwell confirmed that it will be strictly for their use, nothing else. 
 
Mr. Hayes asked if it would be a change of use for the manager to run his own webmaster 
business out of the residence office. 
 
Mr. Hartwell responded that it’s just an office area for the manager. If he is going to do anything 
he will do it out of the office at the Hartwell House. Mr. Hartwell confirmed that the manager 
will not be running any type of business out of the house. There will be no commercial use. 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked about non-manager staff housing. 
 
Mr. Hartwell confirmed there would be no non-manager staff housing. 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked about guest overflow from the Hartwell House. 
 
Mr. Hartwell confirmed there will be no guest accommodations there. It will be a managers’ 
home. He confirmed that the “boarding house” is in the other building. 
 
Mr. MacLeod noted that the 15’ setback and 75’ frontage do not appear to be on the drawing. 
 
Mr. Hartwell responded that they don’t intend to divide the property. He suggested Mr. MacLeod 
might look at it on the scale. He reiterated that it’s all one property. 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked if the Board members were OK with everything. They were. 
 
At this time the Board reviewed the Design Review Submissions Checklist and found the 
application complete with the following motion. 
 
Ms. Freedman Moved to Find the application complete for JAMES HARTWELL – 309 Shore 
Road – Map 3 Block 17 – LB/OFR.  Design Review for a post 1931 structure. Application to 
construct an addition to an existing structure on an existing foundation. 
FREEDMAN/MACLEOD 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked if there was any further discussion, there being none he called for a vote on 
Ms. Freedman’s Motion: 
 
Ms. Freedman Moved to Find the application complete for JAMES HARTWELL – 309 
Shore Road – Map 3 Block 17 – LB/OFR.  Design Review for a post 1931 structure. 
Application to construct an addition to an existing structure on an existing foundation. 
FREEDMAN/MACLEOD 4:0 UNANIMOUS 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked if the Board members felt a Public Hearing would be beneficial. He noted that 
this property is a very visible property on Shore Road. 
 
The Board agreed that a Public Hearing was needed. 
 



 
 Planning Board Meeting: April 10, 2017 

 

8 
 

The Board agreed that no site visit was necessary. 
 
Mr. Hayes Moved to table the application for JAMES HARTWELL – 309 Shore Road – Map 3 
Block 17 – LB/OFR.  Design Review for a post 1931 structure. Application to construct an 
addition to an existing structure on an existing foundation, to May 8, 2017 
HAYES/MACLEOD 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked if there was any further discussion, there being none he called for a vote on 
Mr. Hayes’ Motion: 
 
Mr. Hayes Moved to table the application for JAMES HARTWELL – 309 Shore Road – 
Map 3 Block 17 – LB/OFR.  Design Review for a post 1931 structure. Application to 
construct an addition to an existing structure on an existing foundation, to May 8, 2017 
HAYES/MACLEOD 4:0 UNANIMOUS 
 
A Public Hearing was scheduled to take place on May 8, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
The Applicant agreed to this date and time. 
 
H. CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER BUSINESS – None 
 
I. OTHER BUSINESS –  
 
Mr. MacLeod suggested that the Board may not need as much paperwork as is sometimes 
submitted.  
 
J. ADJOURNMENT – 
 
Mr. Hayes Moved to Adjourn at 7:45 p.m. 
HAYES/MACLEOD 4:0 UNANIMOUS  
 
 
     
     
     Respectfully Submitted 

     Maryann Stacy 
     Maryann Stacy 
     Planning Board Recording Secretary 
Approved on May 8, 2017 


